City of Seattle Request for Proposal #POL-202
Addendum 

Updated 9/06/12

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal #POL-202, titled Police In-Car Computer System Replacement released on 8/13/12.  The due date and time for responses remains as 9/27/12 at 4:30PM (Pacific).  This Addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	Will all 6 locations be used to upload video?  How many locations will vehicles use to upload video per building? 


	Yes.  Six locations are parking facilities where patrol cars are based:  1. North Precinct Out-Door (O.D.) parking lot;  2. East Precinct parking garage (P.G); 3. West PCT (P.G), 4. South Pct. (O.D.), 5. South West Pct. (O.D), 6. Park 90 (Traffic) (O.D.)-
	

	2
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	What is the maximum amount of vehicles that would be wirelessly uploading simultaneously?


	The maximum number of vehicles at any location is 50.  The maximum number of vehicles that may be uploading data at any time would be 12
	

	3
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	What is the amount of time that the vehicle will be available to upload video?


	Please use a minimum of thirty minutes for planning video upload.  SPD Patrol cars are used two out of three shifts per day so there will be one extended upload period each day.
	

	4
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	How many hours of video do you anticipate per vehicle per shift?


	One hour
	

	5
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	How many total hours per day of video do you anticipate, and what is your retention policy?


	SPD historically has averaged 4,000 hours of video per month, or about 133 hours of video each day.  SPD’s current retention policy is to retain all video for 1280 days.
	

	6
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	How many simultaneously recorded channels of video do you require for your vehicles?

	Minimum of two channels of recorded video.  NOTE:  SPD currently records one channel of video so all numbers noted above are based on one recorded video channel.
	

	7
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	Will the city install the Wireless Access Points to the building or should the vendor provide the installation?


	Yes.  The City is in process of upgrading our current wireless infrastructure in parking areas.
	

	8
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	Will each location store video, or will video storage be centralized to one location? Please provide the specifications on your existing servers and storage system you intend to use for the video management system (OS, processors, RAM, available storage space).


	Video will be stored in a centralized location.  

Single server with Intel Xeon 2.66 GHz or better dual core processor and 8G of RAM running either Windows 2008R2 or Linux.  Storage includes 2Tb of internal storage and 200Tb+ of external NAS storage.


	

	9
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	What type of laptops are you currently using?


	SPD does not use laptops in our vehicles.  We currently use a COBAN VMDT-II fixed mount system. 
	

	10
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	Are your current vehicle laptop mounts adjustable to accommodate different form factors, or do new mounts need to be provided by the vendor?


	N/A
	

	11
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	Do you have a screen size preference for your new laptops?


	Please see Section 4.2 that states:
In-Car display will have a minimum of 11 inch diagonal measurement -  1024 x 768,  touch screen
	

	12
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	Please describe your delivery schedule timeline.


	Please see Section 6.11.  Delivery schedule would be closely tied to forecasted payment schedule and is expected to take SPD about 5 months to complete the installation of new computer systems in all vehicles.  :

1.  Complete installation and configuration of video back office system and successful pilot of three In-Car systems
5%

2. Delivery of the first 75 Systems 17.5%

3. Delivery of the second 75 Systems 17.5%

4. Delivery of the third 75 Systems 17.5%

5. Delivery of the final In-Car Systems 17.5%

6.Final system acceptance
25%
	

	13
	8/20/12
	8/21/12
	Please describe your network connection/infrastructure between the locations which will use the video management software.


	The City maintains fiber optic data transmission between all facilities where video will be uploaded.  
	

	14
	8/16/12
	8/21/12
	I see that the RFP is both for vehicle computers and for vehicle cameras.  My company manufactures and sells vehicle cameras for law enforcement, but we do not manufacture or sell the vehicle computer systems.

Is it ok to still participate in your bid process for just the vehicle cameras only?


	The City of Seattle requires proposed solutions to provide both In-Car computer system and In-Car video.  Vendors may choose to collaborate or partner to fulfill all of the City's requirements.


	

	15
	8/28/12
	8/30/12
	In technical document, section 7.1.22 says "Manufacturer shall provide the customer the necessary brackets, mounting hardware,..." but on pricing spreadsheet (in Notes under first section) it says "Screen and Keyboard - Customer will provide sliding keyboard tray on post and display mount is double DIN stereo relocation mount."  
Please clarify what it is you want the 'manufacturer' to provide.  
If manufacturer is providing mounts what type(s) of consoles do you currently use?  
Is there an AM/FM radio in the vehicles and/or can the slot in dash used for the AM/FM radio be used to mount the displays?

	We are currently providing a "double DIN stereo relocation mount", also we have Havis Shield slide trays mounted between the seats. All of this is designed for use in the Ford Crown Vic with the existing Coban VMDT2 system. The City is currently testing six vehicles to replace the Ford Crown Vic over the next 5 years.  With the test vehicles we are using various types of RAM mounts and RAM consoles.
  

Since the majority of vehicles to be installed will be Crown Vics, the vendor solution needs to be able to safely install all of the system components without impacting the airbag zone. The majority of vehicles need to be able to support a driver and a passenger.
  

The City is using Havis Shield slide tray mounts in the Crown Vics.
 

 

The existing mount uses the AM/FM radio slot for the Coban VMDT2 display. The AM/FM radio is relocated to the ashtray position. The ashtray is discarded.

	

	16
	8/28/12
	8/30/12
	On pricing spreadsheet...Line 28->"Training for City Training personnel (Train the Trainer)"...Is the number '60' correct and, if so, please clarify what the '60' stands for, i.e. trainers, hours, other?


	Please estimate training for City of Seattle Personnel for 24 hours.  The 24 hours would be divided as:  Eight hours of training for the Video Unit and Video Back Office Administrator, Eight hours of training for technicians supporting the computers in the cars, and eight hours of training for City Trainers on the operation of the In-Car Video system and software.
	

	17
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Section 4: Mandatory Technical Requirements, Question 23: “System must allow use of existing SPD Enterprise storage solution (BlueArc)”  may conflict with the section 1.1 requirement to provide a “complete and functioning system”.  Although the proposed solution could use the existing SPD Enterprise storage, that may not be the best component.  Will SPD consider alternative storage that provides an integrated complete and functioning system? 


	SPD requires the system to function with our enterprise NAS.  
	

	18
	8/30/121
	9/06/12
	What is the current capacity of the SPD Enterprise storage available for this project?


	The City has 210 TBytes of storage dedicated to In-Car video, with the potential to add an additional 200 TBytes.
	

	19
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Is the current SPD Enterprise storage dedicated to this project?


	Enterprise storage is not dedicated to this project.  Enterprise storage is shared and the In-Car video will have its own storage volume within the enterprise solution.
	

	20
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	1. How many vehicles will require replacement of the in-car video and in-car computer system throughout the life of this contract?  The RFP states 300, will more units be added, motorcycles etc.?

2. 
	Seattle Police have 300 In-Car video systems deployed in vehicles that will be replaced.  We maintain spare units for parts, and “pre-installs” for new vehicles.  To plan for the future we are requesting pricing and availability for Video Units that may be used for:  Motorcycles, Interview Rooms, and Body Worn Video.  
	

	21
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	How many separate locations does the Seattle PD operate where vehicles equipped with the new system will be reporting to?

a. For each location please provide: Number of total vehicles at specific location; type of shift schedule operated at specific location; number of vehicles operating per shift at each specific location (please try and use an average day as the basis for number of vehicles)


	Please see the response to Question 1: - Seattle Police maintain 6 locations that will utilize wireless upload:  The six locations are parking facilities where patrol cars are based:  1. North Precinct Out-Door (O.D.) parking lot – 65 vehicles;  2. East Precinct parking garage (P.G) 65 vehicles; 3. West PCT (P.G) 60 vehicles, 4. South Pct. (O.D.) 30 vehicles, 5. South West Pct. (O.D) 30 vehicles, 6. Park 90 (Traffic) (O.D.) 40 vehicles.  The remaining vehicles are at alternate locations that will not require wireless offload.-   The maximum number of vehicles that may be uploading data at any time would be 12
	

	22
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	3. We understand Seattle will be installing the wireless network, please confirm.  


	Yes
	

	23
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Will the vendor be responsible for installation of in-car hardware and back office hardware?   Please elaborate on the type of installation assistance the City is requesting from vendors in item 6.4.


	The Vendor will not be required to install In-Car or Server and storage Hardware.  

Seattle Police will require the assistance of the Vendor to configure the In-Car system Operating System and application so that we may add Seattle Police Applications, and join the In-Car unit to Seattle Police Domain.  We will purchase and install base server/s and image/s (per vendor specification)  and will maintain and patch our servers.  We will require assistance of the vendor to install and configure the In-Car video back office application and any DataBase connections.  
	

	24
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please confirm that the city will be supplying the 802.11n wireless network at all locations?
	Yes
	

	25
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	If the City is providing the wireless network, question 24 above, please provide the make and model of wireless equipment.


	Aruba, AP134 or equivalent


	

	26
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	4. At the pre-proposal meeting, it was mentioned the city was providing the antennas for the vehicles, please confirm. 

5. 
	The City will purchase and install antennas on the vehicles.  We will work with the vendor (and wireless carrier) to select the most appropriate antennas for the vehicles
	

	27
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	6. If yes to question 26 above, is the city also providing the wireless hardware, modem etc for the vehicles?  If so, please provide the make and model numbers of the equipment.

7. 
	The City will provide the 4G cellular wireless modem, but we have not selected the specific make and model at this time.  The vendor will provide the 802.11n modem for the In-Car computer.
	

	28
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	8. Does the city plan on using the new Wireless Upload network for any other wireless traffic such as MDC’s? If so, is the department supplying the wireless N modem hardware for the MDC’s?

9. 
	Yes, Seattle Police plan to use the 802.11n connection to allow Patrol Officers to authenticate to the SPD domain, and to upload reports and data in addition to uploading of video.
	

	29
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Is there a form which vendors must complete and submit with proposal in regards to Section 7.15 “Affirmative Efforts for Women and Minority Subcontracting”? If so, can you please provide the appropriate form?

10. 
	The “Inclusion Plan” form is embedded on Page 1 of the Vendor Questionnaire. This form only needs to be submitted if a proposer intends to subcontract any work.  
	

	30
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	To better spec the mounting configuration for our proposal, would it be possible to send pictures of the consoles in each vehicle type in use?
11. 
	Not at this time.
	

	31
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	I understand that the City will be removing the existing COBAN computers.  If new computer mounts are needed for each vehicle are they to be bid as part of this RFP?

12. 
	Yes
	

	32
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	If the City requires new mounts can you provide a list of vehicles- year, make and model and quantities of each? 

13. 
	No.  

Seattle Police are in the process of selecting the replacement Patrol Vehicle for the current Crown Vic.  We forecast that over the 5 year life of the In-Car system all of the current Fords will be cycled out of service, and replaced with new vehicle/s. Please see response to question 15.
	

	33
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	If the City is reusing the COBAN mounts for any new computer selected can the City provide details of the current COBAN mount? This should include the keyboard tray. 

14. 
	Please see the response to question 15.
	

	34
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	In tech specs 7.1.22 can you be more specific about what Federal Motor Vehicle Safety requirements are being referred to?

15. 
	This standard was provided by the IACP as a recommendation to provide a framework for a safe installation of equipment.  We do not have a specific NHTSA or Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard requirement to reference. 
	

	35
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please elaborate on technical requirement 7.2.3 (“The system has a camera that may be located on the light bar to record video in a 360 degree field of view surrounding the vehicle”). Questions were asked during the pre-bid conference but the phone quality did not allow us to hear the answers.  Is the intent to support a PTZ camera or 3-4 cameras pointing in different directions?

16. 
	Seattle Police are interested to see if the vendor is able to provide a wider field of view around the vehicle.  The requirement is to provide a minimum of a front and rear facing camera, but we are interested to see if there are any options for capturing a wider field of view which may include up to 360 Degree field of view.
	

	36
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please provide the detailed hardware specifications for existing:

a. WIFI access points

b. Server workstation hardware specifications at each offload location (if any)

c. Routers

d. For each of the above, please indicate the end of life plan and whether the present equipment will be replaced or augmented.

17. 
	Aruba, AP134 or equivalent

Servers:  New servers or Virtual Servers will be implemented by Seattle Police per Vendor recommendations as part of the project.

Routers:  N/A

Seattle Police will provide sufficient infrastructure between the 6 primary locations to facilitate video upload and transfer to the host system.


	

	37
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please provide detailed specifications on the antennas currently installed including connecter termination (and age/end of life) and whether it is SPD’s intention for this equipment to be reused.  If it is to be reused, who will be responsible for maintaining and supporting it?

18. 
	Appropriate antennas will be purchased to deploy in conjuctions with the new In-Car systems.  We will look to the Vendor to provide options for antennas which will work with Seattle Police vehicles.
	

	38
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please provide year by year maintenance data for the last 3 years that includes:

e. The number of service tickets for the existing system categorized by:

i. Issues with video recording system

ii. Issues with hardware (including video hardware)

iii. Issues not related to video/hardware

f. The number of times a working system was removed for an existing vehicle and installed in another.

g. The number of times a system was removed/replaced because of a malfunction

h. The number of incidents associated with a missing, corrupt, damaged, misplaced and bad audio/video file

i. How many of these incidents resulted in lost or unusable media?

i. The number of service incidents regarding an offload location

j. The number of incidents involving issues with offloading of data from

i. Vehicles on WIFI

ii. Media physically transferred
19. 
	This question is outside the scope for this RFP.
	

	39
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please provide detailed examples (output of existing system or screen grab) of existing audit reports as outlined in item 20 of the mandatory technical requirements.

20. 
	Seattle Police require the system to provide audit reports.  Specific elements (which are not mandatory) are outlined in: Technical Requirements section 7.8
	

	40
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please provide detailed examples (output of existing system or screen grab) of exiting metadata as outlined in item 21 of the mandatory technical requirements.

21. 
	Seattle Police require the system to provide meta data associated with video.  Specific elements (which are not mandatory) are outlined in: Technical Requirements section 7.7
	

	41
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please provide detailed examples (output of existing system or screen grab) of existing back office search functionality as outlined in item 22 of the mandatory technical requirements.

22. 
	Seattle Police require the system to provide search capability for video.  Specific elements (which are not mandatory) are outlined in: Technical Requirements section 7.7
	

	42
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please indicate the requirement for operation of the system in the vehicle when the engine is not running.

a. Minimum time the video system will be operational before shutting down

b. What is the protocol for leaving the system running and ready to record video when the engine is off?

c. If not recording a video what is time and preference before standby or shut down?

d. If recording a video what is time and preference before standby or shut down?

e. If uploading a video what is the preferred process?  

f. What is minimum voltage level on vehicle battery before system stops using the battery?

g. Does the system keep recording even if there is risk to the vehicle battery being drained and may not start the car?

h. Does outside temperature have a bearing on the above questions?

i. Please provide any other details on vehicle battery (batteries) use that is relevant 


	Seattle Police recognize there are limitations on how long the In-Car system may be operated when the vehicle is not running.  Most of the questions in this section would be responded to as part of the: Technical Response, Desired Specifications:

a. b. c. d. 

Please refer to Technical Response – Desired Specifications below.

7.1.26, 7.1.27, 7.1.28, 

e. Please refer to 7.3.10 and include detail in the comments section 

f. g. h. i.

Due to the transient nature of batteries, we are unable to respond to these questions.
	

	43
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please provide the existing protocol and process from start of a FOIA request (or prosecutor/DA/defense/anyone else) making a request. 

a. Please provide forms and any electronic examples and screens shots.

b. Please indicate each process step.

c. How many requests of this type are generated per month?

d. Please provide existing information on the number of people and computers authorized to create evidence media and the number of DVD bays the department uses along with the number of times the devices needed to be repaired.

e. Please provide an example of a log request/audit log that exists currently


	Seattle Police are open to making modifications to our current FOIA or PDR process based on a Vendors response to Technical Response; Desired Specifications: 7.7 and 7.8

The intent of questions regarding FOIA or Public Disclosure is to see if the system can assist SPD with automating, auditing, tracking, or improving current business practice.
	

	44
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please provide the following information on existing media

a. Media type i.e. WMV, H.264 etc

b. Media frame size i.e. 640x480

c. Video bit rate and associated audio bit rate

i. Is the video variable bit rate?

d. The average file size in storage (or the total storage size and number of files)


	Questions:

a. MPEG-II

b. 640 x 480

c. Unknown

d. Avg video length is 0:12:40

Total number of files is unknown, but total volume is approximately 180 TBytes
	

	45
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Please provide existing retention policy guidelines

a. To include the number of files and storage used by each retention policy


	1280 Days for all video
	

	46
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	SPD has indicated that they will provide server infrastructure. The answer implies there will be not be high availability server redundancy.  Is this accurate and is this SPD’s intention? Please indicate the SLA on this equipment.

a. Can you list all relevant equipment that is used for the video system

i. DVD burners

ii. Special dedicated computers

iii. Interview systems

iv. WIFI spots

	Correct, Seattle Police consider the In-Car video back office application and system to be an Important application and key to our daily operation, however we do not consider the In-Car video back office to be a Mission Critical Application.

We currently do not have SLA’s
	

	47
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	Technical requirement 7.1.21 states that SPD prefers a detachable keyboard assembly.  However, the impression was given during the pre-bid conference that the department would equally consider laptop solutions where the keyboard, computer and display are one device. Assuming SPD intends to treat laptop-based solutions equally and has no preference for one over the other.  Can 7.1.21 be changed to state no preference rather than having to explain the deviation?
	Technical Response – Desired Specification 7.1.21 will not be modified and will be scored as part of the overall Technical Response.
	

	48
	8/30/12
	9/06/12
	How cellular data is currently utilized in the vehicles and what carrier(s) are used?  Can cellular be leveraged by the new in-vehicle system for lightweight data transfer?
	Seattle Police currently utilize a 3G cellular solution, but will be moving to a 4G solution as part of the In-Car upgrade effort. We are open to exploring how the Cellular data network may be used for lightweight data transfer. 
	

	49
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Does Seattle have a NITS, or brightness requirement for the monitors?
	We do not have a NITS requirement, but require a monitor that is bright enough to be easily viewed in full daylight by the operator.


	

	50
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Do you want laptop or fixed-mount computer?
	Either laptop or fixed-mount will be acceptable.


	

	51
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Should proposals include the external antennas for the vehicles?

	No.  The City will furnish all external antennas


	

	52
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Should proposals include the removal of existing computers from vehicles?

	No.  The City will be responsible for removing all vehicle computers.


	

	53
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Technical Response, Section 7.07. What video format is the City seeking?
	DVD format


	

	54
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Technical Response, Section 7.2.3.  Does the City want a single camera with this ability or will multiple cameras be acceptable to achieve 360 degree field of view.
	Either single or multiple cameras will be acceptable.


	

	55
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Management Response, “Proposed Project Approach” Should the plan be based upon previous projects conducted for other customers or this project.
	This project should be based upon Section 6.3 “Project Deliverables” under the Statement of Work and should provide the outline of the plan to indicate a proposed methodology.  We are not requiring a detailed project plan at this time.  


	

	56
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Technical Response, Section 7.3.4, Can a crash sensor be used?
	Yes


	

	57
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Statement of Work, Section 6.7.  Will the Vendor be responsible for set-up on their system?


	No.  The City will require assistance from the Vendor in making the final system configuration settings to establish the connection.  The City will require assistance from the Vendor in configuring Video upload.


	

	58
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Statement of Work, Section 6.6.  Will the vendor utilize the back-office equipment i.e. servers and storage.

	Yes, the City will provide the servers and storage, but will look for the vendor to provide information in the proposal on recommended sizing for servers and storage.


	

	59
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Statement of Work, Section 6.7, last sentence.  What in-car software?
	Microsoft


	

	60
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Statement of Work, Section 7.1.5 & 7.1.6, In respect to the USB ports, can that be achieved through a combination of computer and vehicle docking station?
	Yes


	

	61
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Price Response.  Does the City want maintenance for 5 years on both hardware and software?
	Yes


	

	62
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Price Response.  Will a hardware warranty satisfy the maintenance requirement?


	Yes, a warranty or extended warranty as long as it continues for 5 years.

Vendor to define the limitations for standard warranty such as manufactures defects.  An extended warranty such as accidental damages can be proposed as an option. 


	

	63
	8/23/12
	9/06/12
	Will the wireless upload be from the computer or the video recorder separate of itself.
	Either


	

	64
	
	9/06/12
	
	
	Section1 “Minimum Qualifications”
Subsection 3.1, remove the words three years and replace it with one year.

	65
	
	9/06/12
	
	
	Section 1 “Minimum Qualifications”
Subsection 3.2, remove the words three years and replace it with one year.

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	




Page 1 of 20

